
City of Excelsior
Hennepin County, Minnesota

MINUTES
EXCELSIOR CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION

Tuesday, February 18, 2014

1. Call to Order/Roll Call

Mayor Gaylord called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m.

Present: Councilmembers Beattie (arrived at 6:12 p.m.), Caron, Fulkerson, 
Miller (arrived at 6:06 p.m.), and Mayor Gaylord

Absent: None

Also Present:  City Manager Luger, Finance Director Tumberg, Public Works 
Superintendent Wisdorf and City Clerk Murphy

2. Agenda Approval

Fulkerson moved, Caron seconded, to approve the agenda.  Motion carried 3/0.

3. Food and Beverage Tax

Luger provided a list of local businesses to be contacted in regards to the Food and 
Beverage Tax.  The Council discussed calling each local business versus having a 
business meeting at City Hall with all of the businesses together.  Luger said that the
call to each business is meant to give them more information regarding the Food and
Beverage Tax and answer any questions.  Mayor Gaylord said the call is to get them 
on board with the idea and provide a better understanding of the tax.  Miller said 
Tom Stevens of Maynard’s doesn’t want the tax but understands the difficulty the 
City is facing in terms of revenue.

Tumberg mentioned that the League of Minnesota Cities (LMC) stated that the City 
could specify which businesses would be affected by the tax.  Mayor Gaylord 
questioned if the charter boats would be included.  Tumberg said that while they are 
docked in Excelsior, they would be subject to the tax, but on the lake, they are not in
the City’s jurisdiction.

Beattie asked what the City has been done in the past to gain support from local 
business owners.  Fulkerson said she has been hearing that businesses are opposed 
to the tax.  Miller said that there was no survey done, but businesses didn’t view it 
as positive.  Caron said the recent article in the newspaper didn’t include the full 
picture and didn’t state that the tax goes away once the revenue is generated.

Beattie asked if there is a maximum term for the tax.  Tumberg said she doesn’t 
believe there is a maximum but that the City could limit the term.

Luger provided an updated copy of the Food and Beverage Tax Fact Sheet that will 
be given to local businesses, but more information is needed.  Beattie questioned the



Minutes
City Council Work Session
February 18, 2014
Page 2

3. Food and Beverage Tax - Continued

purpose of the section on Excelsior’s residents.  Luger said it’s to dispel the myth 
that Excelsior is a wealthy community.  Caron suggested taking out the picture and 
making the heading smaller, and adding more bulleted information.  Mayor Gaylord 
suggested changing the bar chart to a pie chart.  Caron suggested a comparison of 
our tax rate versus surrounding communities.  Tumberg asked if staff should include 
direct impact of bonding versus the tax or state that the $200,000 gained each year 
is “x” percent out of the levy.  Caron suggested adding information on upgrading the 
facilities and infrastructure.  Mayor Gaylord suggested adding some phrases 
indicating the amount it would cost per person per visit.

Beattie asked if this tax is limited to only food and beverage.  Luger said the City can
ask for a general tax but it’s much more difficult to obtain.  Mayor Gaylord stated 
that there is some urgency in getting this done, with legislation starting February 25.
Luger asked which Councilmembers will meet with the legislators.  Mayor Gaylord 
said he would like more discussion on what will be said by each Councilmember in 
their calls to the local businesses and what the Council will relate to the media.  
Mayor Gaylord said he was contacted by KARE11.  The Council agreed to hold off on 
the media discussion until the City has talked with the legislators.

Beattie stated that this session will be a short session.  Caron suggested approaching
the legislators to set the date early.  Mayor Gaylord said that he, Luger and Tumberg
can make the call to the legislators.  Miller suggested setting up a meeting and 
talking about it at that time.  Beattie suggested a meeting time for the end of 
February.  Mayor Gaylord and Miller agreed to meet with the legislators.

Caron stated that the flyer needs to take priority.  Mayor Gaylord suggested getting 
any positive feedback from the local businesses in writing.  Fulkerson said she would 
like some script to use when calling the local businesses.  Mayor Gaylord suggested 
having all of the contacts with the local businesses done by the time he and Miller 
meet with the legislators.  Luger said staff will write a script for the Council to use in 
their calls.

Caron said she will contact Jake O’Connor’s, 318 The Mill, Dunn Bros., and Patisserie 
Margo.  Caron said she has already talked with Coalition.

Miller said he will call Bayside Grille, Tommy’s Trolley, McDonald’s and Victor’s.  
Miller said he has already talked with Tom Stevens of Maynard’s.  Mayor Gaylord said
he will make another call to Tom Stevens of Maynard’s.

Beattie said that he and Caron will talk to Excelsior Brewing Company at their 
meeting that is scheduled for February 20th.

Luger said staff will assign the rest of the businesses to the Councilmembers.

Jack Stevens of Maynard’s addressed the Council.  Jack Stevens said he believes that
Maynard’s will be subject to 40 percent of the Food and Beverage Tax.  Jack Stevens
stated that their operations in the winter are difficult and they work hard to keep 
their prices down.  Jack Stevens stated that Maynards’ utility bill and property taxes



Minutes
City Council Work Session
February 18, 2014
Page 3

3. Food and Beverage Tax - Continued

are higher in Excelsior, as compared to their location in Maple Grove.  Jack Stevens 
said that to pass this tax on to their customers is very fragile and delicate for their 
business.  

Miller said that he spoke with Tom Stevens of Maynard’s, who said he appreciated 
what the City is trying to accomplish.  Miller stated that the other option to raise 
revenue is to bond for it, but residents would not be happy and may not be able to 
afford it.  Miller said that this would cause the taxes for businesses to also go up.  
Miller asked Jack Stevens if Maynard’s has thought of any funding alternatives for 
the City?  Miller stated that this is something for Maynard’s to think about and 
consider which would affect the bottom line for their business the most.  Miller also 
stated that it has been about 40 years since money has been put into the buildings 
in The Commons.  Jack Stevens said he would like to see information on whether the
tax will expire or if the tax will continue for a new project later on.  Jack Stevens said
Maynard’s believes the tax will not expire.  Beattie asked Jack Stevens if there are 
any circumstances in which Maynard’s would support this tax.  Jack Stevens said 
Maynard’s believes they are feeling a lot of the burden from this tax and that they 
are more interested in finding ways to keep people in the Excelsior area during the 
winter months.

Beattie asked if the Food and Beverage Tax could be seasonal (i.e., May through 
September).  Jack Stevens said a seasonal tax over the summer months would be 
more acceptable for their business.  Jack Stevens said Maynard’s would be in strong 
favor of winter activities in Excelsior that would bring in more customers.

Miller said that the City needs a better facility in The Commons for events.

Luger said there are a lot of reasons why this Food and Beverage Tax is a vehicle for 
the City to use.  Luger stated that a percentage of Excelsior’s tax base goes into the 
fiscal disparities program, which goes to cities outside of Excelsior.  Luger also said 
that Excelsior does not receive any state or local government aid.

Beattie stated that this tax is more of a pass-through for people coming in to 
Excelsior and doesn’t believe the tax will be an added cost to Maynards’ operation.

4. Council Meeting Process

This item will be continued to the March 3, 2014 Council Work Session meeting.

5. Parking Meter Fines

Luger discussed parking meter fines and the problem with the automated system 
with Hennepin County.  Luger said it is difficult to obtain the amount of the fine 
through the system and that it can take days or even longer to get this information.  
Luger said that this is a Hennepin County issue and that there is nothing the City can
do about it.  Luger said the South Lake Minnetonka Police Department is also 



Minutes
City Council Work Session
February 18, 2014
Page 4

5. Parking Meter Fines - Continued

frustrated with the County’s automated system.  Beattie suggested that staff 
respond to Doug Schmidt with an explanation.

6. Adjournment

Caron moved, Beattie seconded, to adjourn at 6:58 p.m.  Motion carried 5/0.

Respectfully submitted,

Shirley Murphy
City Clerk


